

National Academy of Professional Studies (NAPS) Skills Framework and Skills Hub

Contents

1.	Importance of Skills at NAPS	2
2.	Goals of the NAPS Skills Program	
3.	Implementation	
4.	Generic Business Skills and Attributes	
	Communication	
	Information and Communication Technology	3
	Problem Solving	4
	Collaboration/Teamwork	5
	Effective Workplace/Business Skills	5
	Professional Ethics	
	Social Responsibility	6
	Lifelong Learning	7
	Personal Attributes	7
	Critical Thinking and Creativity	8
	Internationalisation	8
5.	NAPS Online Skills Development	8
	Business Degree Skills Hub	
	Technological Skills	10
	Learning Skills	10
	Resources for NAPS Teachers	11
6.	Contact	11
7.	References	11
	Appendix 1 – Sample of Skills Hub Resources	12
	1. Business Degree Skills	12
	2. Technology Skills	13
	3. Learning Skills	14
	4. Resources for NAPS Teachers	
	5. Ongoing Development	15



1. Importance of Skills at NAPS

The National Academy of Professional Studies (NAPS) is committed to graduating creative professionals who are capable of developing innovative solutions to problems facing the wider society as well as in their workplace. This will require graduates to possess analytical and critical capacities as well as the ability to synthesise ideas and adapt to new situations.

NAPS expects its graduates to have developed a body of professional and disciplinary knowledge and technical skills as well as a set of appropriate professional values and life-skills, also known as 'soft' skills. For this reason, we have distinguished between generic skills and specific professional skills.

A skills statement is always a 'work in progress'. Thus, the NAPS Skills Hub will evolve over time and will be continually evaluated to ensure the skills taught are relevant and up to date. However, NAPS can only prepare students to a level of basic competency in these various skills by providing online opportunities, although they will also use these skills as part of their learning, for example in presentations and class group work. The mastery of these skills is a lifelong journey continuing throughout their careers.

2. Goals of the NAPS Skills Program

The purpose of this skills statement is to:

- a. more clearly define 'professionalism';
- b. ensure NAPS addresses the concerns about 'skills gaps' between higher education in the professional areas and what is needed in practice;
- c. highlight NAPS developmental approach that defines the student skills development across the curriculum; and
- d. endorse the view that all professors are skills teachers.

3. Implementation

The skills and attributes expected of NAPS graduates are expressed in general or generic terms that provide a framework for their development in the context of different award levels and specific disciplines and professional fields. The skills and attributes will be:

- a. the focus on professional education at NAPS;
- b. supported and understood by all staff and students of NAPS;
- c. fundamental to curriculum design, teaching methods and assessment within subjects;
- d. contextualized at the level of individual subjects and courses;
- e. relatable to the teaching and learning outcomes of particular subjects;
- f. explicitly communicated to faculty, students and potential employers through subject documentation;
- g. capable of self-assessment by students;
- h. demonstrable through presentation of appropriate evidence by students; and
- i. regularly reviewed.



4. Generic Business Skills and Attributes

NAPS recognises that individuals entering its program bring with them a diversity of personal and professional attributes that should be further developed by their experience as students and graduates of NAPS.

NAPS expects all of its graduates to have developed the following skills and attributes to a level appropriate for their award which will equip them for success in professional life:

Communication

Graduates are expected to be able to:

- a. express knowledge, ideas and opinions in their professional field, both orally and in written form, with confidence and clarity;
- b. present arguments and ideas effectively;
- c. actively listen and respond to the ideas of other people;
- d. negotiate effectively;
- e. create and present new ideas;
- f. lead a brainstorming discussion and moving it forward to an action plan; and
- g. conduct a meeting and lead group discussion.

Business Context

Oral and written communication skills of the highest order are required of a successful accountant or business person, no matter how students use their degree. In addition to being able to make excellent oral presentations, feedback from employers tells us that they expect students to excel at research and writing. These communication skills are developed by guided practice and individualised feedback. In studying at NAPS, students will experience a broad range of settings in which communication skills can be nurtured.

Some of these contexts include:

- a. strong business research and writing programs;
- b. oral presentations on a particular topic;
- c. problem solving presentations;
- d. business scenarios where students play various roles,
- e. drafting of marketing plans and other business documents;
- f. draft letters of advice: and
- g. client interviewing where students learn active listening skills.

Information and Communication Technology

Graduates are expected to be able to select and use appropriate information and communication technology to retrieve, manipulate and present information. These skills may include, for example:

- Document Editing / Adobe
- Electronic Research / Investigation: factual research on the net



- Podcasting
- Blogs
- Professional Use of Email /Whats App etc
- Calendar
- Databases
- Excel
- Powerpoint
- Project management software
- Time management software
- Security/privacy awareness in a networked environment
- Video Conferencing

Business Context

NAPS students receive excellent training and valuable experience using the leading research tools. While at NAPS students will be provided with online tutorials that provide students with additional opportunities to practice such skills where relevant, such as:

- a. business and business law research;
- b. how to do well on business examinations;
- c. strategic contracting;
- d. legal compliance and good management; and
- e. negotiation.

Problem Solving

Graduates are expected to be able to:

- a. identify problems and analyse the main features of problems relevant to their professional field:
- b. apply appropriate problem-solving processes, arguments, critical and creative thinking;
- c. develop, implement and evaluate strategies for the resolution of problems;
- d. anticipate and define new problems; and
- e. identify and resolve new problems in new fields.

Business Context

Problem solving is one of the most important skillsets of the accountant or business person. In almost every unit, students will develop a range of approaches, tactics and strategies involved in problem solving. Problem solving includes not only the narrow aspect of research and writing but also viewing the business in context to incorporate the role of business in risk management, compliance, creativity and design.



Collaboration/Teamwork

Graduates are expected to be able to:

- a. work with others as part of a group;
- b. take responsibility for carrying out agreed tasks;
- c. be aware of the different roles and responsibilities of group members;
- d. evaluate group performance;
- e. take initiative and demonstrate leadership; and
- f. respect the rights of others irrespective of their cultural background, race or gender.

Business Context

Professionals increasingly work in teams, often including people from other disciplines such as accounting, economics, information technology, communications and so on. At NAPS, students are provided with multiple opportunities to develop their collaborative skills, to learn to work as a team in developing a strategy, solving a problem and achieving important outcomes.

At NAPS we promote collaborative and teamwork skills, for example, by:

- a. encouraging group work involving research, presentations, client interviewing and other contexts;
- b. encouraging students to be actively involved with our Business Students Association;
- c. encouraging students to seek out volunteer or work experience opportunities; and
- d. designing assignments and providing classroom experiences requiring collaborative work.

Effective Workplace/Business Skills

Graduates are expected to:

- a. demonstrate entrepreneurial skills including creativity, initiative, adaptability, leadership, resourcefulness;
- b. understand 'business' language and basic business terms;
- c. have a basic understanding of accounts and related business skills;
- d. have the ability to initiate new ideas, implement decisions and cope with uncertainty;
- e. be able to function in a multi-cultural or global environment;
- f. understand role of business law and business in risk management and business strategy; and
- g. be skilled in time and knowledge management.

Business Context

Effective workplace skills are best nurtured in a place where it is exciting to work. In the extraordinary environment of Sydney, our students have the benefit of living, studying and working in one of the world's most beautiful cities. Sydney is home to many major companies, it has approximately 40% of Australia's start-ups, a world-class education system and information infrastructure. Sydney is an 'international city'. Many of Sydney's citizens walk on not only a national, but an international stage. We seek to get these



global professionals actively involved with our Academy. This involvement greatly enriches the quality of learning of our students.

Professional Ethics

Graduates are expected to:

- a. act responsibly, ethically and with integrity in the context of their profession and their obligations to society; and
- b. appreciate the social and cultural context of their profession.

Business Context

In addition to specialised units dealing with professional ethics, students learn about and encounter ethical issues throughout their course of study. This includes both the study of philosophical theories of ethics and even more importantly how to apply those ethics in practice.

Social Responsibility

Graduates are expected to:

- a. work toward improvement in society;
- b. understand economic, political, social, and environmental systems with an international perspective;
- c. act in environmentally sustainable ways; and
- d. accept service to the community as the primary purpose for professional life.

Business Context

Professional disciplines such as business are founded on the philosophical and ethical principles that inform and guide a society. Yet, business is influenced by and in turn influences the history of that society. The study of business and supporting scholarship in these disciplines are important not only for professional use, but is of immense importance to all other callings in society. Every academic staff member of our professional schools takes seriously their duty and responsibility to be involved in the wider community. We celebrate that role and recognise it in promotions and other ways. We do this because we want to model for our students, and have them learn for themselves, the importance of social responsibility.

Lifelong Learning

Graduates are expected to:

- a. be independent self-directed learners with the capacity and motivation for lifelong learning;
- b. be aware of how they best learn;
- c. possess self-knowledge and the ability to assess their own performance critically and accurately; and
- d. have an understanding of how to apply their knowledge and abilities to many different contexts and fields.



Business Context

Acquiring a NAPS professional degree is only the beginning of an exciting lifelong journey. At NAPS we strive to have students not only learn about accounting and business, but also to be equipped and enthusiastic for life-long learning. As Plutarch stated, "The mind is not a vessel to be filled, but a fire to be kindled." As stated above, our focus is on a student-centred curriculum with special attention given to research, reasoning and writing instruction as well as online learning.

Personal Attributes

Graduates are expected to:

- a. be independent thinkers and agents for change;
- b. have confidence to challenge existing ideas;
- c. be creative in coming up with solutions to legal problems;
- d. show commitment to ongoing self-development;
- e. value and respect differing views;
- f. be confident in themselves and their own skills and knowledge;
- g. be able to work with collaboratively and effectively with others;
- h. have the ability to manage time, set priorities;
- i. demonstrate emotional intelligence; and
- i. be an effective leader.

Business Context

Studying to be a professional in accounting or Islamic Business is very challenging, exciting and competitive. The Academy aims to provide an environment where students can test themselves against a select and very talented peer group. This student matrix encourages students to be independent, to value diversity and experience, to reflect upon their special attributes and how they might best develop their talents to the full. At the same time, students must also be able to work with others and develop their emotional as well as their intellectual intelligence. Students must learn to be effective leaders. These and related attributes will be inculcated through our skills programs, placements and experiences both within the classroom and through extra-curricular participation such as essay competitions and student organisations.

Critical Thinking and Creativity

NAPS graduates are expected to be sound critical thinkers. They are also expected to be able to think 'outside the box' and work with others to find creative solutions to problems as well use their creativity to provide better service to their employers, their clients and better serve the community generally.

Business Context

NAPS students also learn the art and skill of critical thinking and creativity. Critical thinking, written communication, oral advocacy and creative problem solving are all inculcated through exercises and activities that start in Year 1 of a NAPS degree and continue throughout.



Internationalisation

Internationalisation is in many respects an 'outlook', and approach - a mind-set. This will be developed in the classroom and in our teaching through the introduction of international developments and perspectives throughout all units as the opportunity arises. It will also occur through interaction among students and with our academics as we develop an international learning community through which we learn with and from one another.

Business Context

The world is becoming a much smaller place. Well-functioning legal and business systems are now seen as part of the competitive advantage of nations. International and comparative perspectives are becoming increasingly important. NAPS seeks to develop an international outlook in our students. This includes an introduction to international/comparative research methods through which, for example, students may develop a skill-set that equips them to broaden their learning and look for the best theory and practice wherever in the world it may be found.

5. NAPS Skills Hub – NAPS Online Skills Development Gateway

Technological literacy is important for NAPS graduates as are workplace, leadership and life skills also known as 'soft' skills. NAPS will use technology to help our students develop such skills in more detail than is possible within their regular learning. This goal will be achieved through the development of the NAPS Skills Hub.

The NAPS Skills Hub is one of the features that facilitates a professional culture and community of scholarship and professional excellence at the Academy, to enrich the learning experience for students and NAPS' staff.

It is the gateway to online tutorials and other useful information to help students to acquire the 'soft skills' required for professional business as well as career information and shared electronic discussion boards for collaborative learning.

The Hub is organised into four categories:

- Business Degree Skills
- Technological Skills
- Learning Skills
- Resources for NAPS Teachers

The Hub will also have a special focus on e-Leadership, preparing students for the role of technology in enabling transformational change and coping with disruption in traditional models of employment, in institutions and in society itself. The Hub will also provide resources to develop leadership skills which will help to secure sustained success and growth in students' chosen professions, sharing some of the extensive literature available about how leadership can be learned and developed.

Our Skills Hub also recognises that there is a growing trend to focus on micro-credentials, especially in business. These micro-credentials cover such areas as technology, project management, financial literacy, presentation, social media, six sigma and other areas. A micro credential is a certification of assessed learning that is focused on particular skills, additional, alternate, complementary to a formal qualification Micro credentials tend to be, brief in length, contemporary, free or inexpensive, usually available online or through a mobile platform. Through the linkages stated here and many additional ones that will be added



as our hub evolves, we will encourage students to build their skill levels and develop a professional portfolio that will enhance their competitiveness in the employment market and enable them to add superior value to prospective employers.

Business Degree Skills Hub

This includes resources such as:

- Improving Academic English proficiency and Writing Skills;
- academic success aids, including Academic Integrity, time management, etc.
- database of targeted study resources;
- career information related to professions which benefit from a business degree;
- shared electronic discussion board to facilitate synchronous and asynchronous feedback on written and other work;
- a calendar facility able to send electronic reminders to students as well as 'motivational' material to encourage students to 'stay the course'; and
- self-paced online skills units to help ensure NAPS students develop the many 'soft skills' required of today's professionals, eg project management, tutorials for Microsoft Office products, career advice and more.
- In the future, it will also include a General Business Skills section. In this area, online learning modules will be progressively added to help develop skills such as the following. The priority will be determined by student demand.

Potential areas are:

- Negotiation
- Written communication
- Oral communication/Public speaking
- Data analytics
- Marketing and sales
- Management
- Leadership
- Project management
- Emotional intelligence
- Technology literacy
- Networking
- Intercultural IQ



Technological Skills

Below is a non-exhaustive list of technological literacy that students should aim to develop during their time at NAPS. Specific information, articles, podcasts and more will progressively be made available on the Skills Hub to help students develop these important skills.

- Microsoft Word (including use of stylesheets)
- Excel
- PowerPoint and other presentation software
- Adobe
- LinkedIn
- Facebook, Twitter and other social media
- Google tools
- Project Management
- Time Management
- Entrepreneurship
- Business Skills
- Website design/creation
- Blogs and Vlogs
- Podcast
- Coding
- Statistics

Learning Skills

Resources to help students develop life-long learning skills will also be on the Skills Hub. These will include up to date blogs, podcasts, YouTube videos and TED Talks.

Examples of potential courses include:

- How to develop an ePortfolio
- Success in your business Course/degree
- Reading skills for Business Studies
- Quantitative Skills
- Written Assignments
- Networking
- Thinking about your career
- Examinations
- How to get the most out of small group work, such as tutorials
- Ethics issues (eg cheating and plagiarism)



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Resources for NAPS Teachers

The Skills Hub will also include resources for NAPS teachers to support their professional and on-going skills development, such as access to updated business case studies at: https://businesscasestudies.co.uk/topics/teacher-resources/

And information on teaching techniques such as at: https://www.ijser.org/researchpaper/Effective-Methods-of-Teaching-Business-Education.pdf.

For a sample of the first round of resources which will be provided on the Skills Hub, see Appendix 1. Additional links will be provided on the advice and request of NAPS students, academics and staff.

6. Contact

For more information on the Skills Hub, for requests for additional resources in a particular area or to give suggestions for additional materials staff or students are aware of that may be useful to others at NAPS, please contact the NAPS IT and Website Services Manager.

For inquiries or suggestions about the overall NAPS Skills Framework, contact NAPS President and CEO.

7. References

This Framework was developed based on NAPS core materials such as the Strategic Plan, Vision and Mission and related policies to help meet their goals. It also incorporates the ideas of NAPS Board of Directors and Council, and NAPS Executive.



Appendix 1 – Sample of Skills Hub Resources

The **NAPS Skills Hub** will host a range of online support services and resources for students including links to resource pages, courses for which NAPS has purchased licences and access to free online courses.

The NAPS Skills Hub subsections are:

- Business Degree Skills (includes general business skills)
- Technology Skills (includes tools for career development)
- Learning Skills (including ePortfolio resources)
- Resources for NAPS Teachers

Here is a sample of some of the resources that will be available by the end of the first round of development, following a review and trials by the IT and Web Development Manager.

1. Business Degree Skills

Business English

Free resources and online courses from The British Council:

http://learnenglish.britishcouncil.org/business-english?_ga=2.31785278.1688645115.1581465867-1861439963.1581465867

Online English and Culture Courses from TAFE NSW – NAPS IT Manager to evaluate/negotiate discount: https://ames.edu.au/online-learning/

Business Skills (General)

Project Management

Fundamentals of Project Planning and Management (Coursera)

https://www.mooc-list.com/course/fundamentals-project-planning-and-management-coursera

Time Management

See Skills Share.com for courses currently available

https://www.skillshare.com/search?query=Time+Management&enrollmentType=free

https://www.skillshare.com/classes/Productivity-And-Time-Management-For-Entrepreneurs-Professionals-And-Business-Owners/266406896?via=search-layout-grid

Entrepreneurship

How to start and develop your own business

 $\frac{https://www.skillshare.com/classes/Absolute-Entrepreneurship-Part-1-Starting-a-Business/1213176078?via=search-autocomplete$

How to come up with killer business ideas (cost applies)



https://www.udemy.com/course/idea-generation-coming-up-with-killer-business-deas/?LSNPUBID=TnL5HPStwNw&ranEAID=TnL5HPStwNw&ranMID=39197&ranSiteID=TnL5HPStwNw-iYBKE0rDQ5eIQYJhWkmQgw

- LinkedIn Learning: IT Manager to evaluate which courses are recommended (cost applies).
 https://learning.linkedin.com/content-library
- Google Online Courses free courses to help grow your business or jumpstart your career.

https://learndigital.withgoogle.com/digitalgarage-au/courses

2. Technology Skills

Moodle

Moodle Tutorial for Beginners - YouTube

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCOVaN2BsHmTHUtE5LbIVR_w

90 Minute Step by Step introduction to Moodle | MoodleNews

https://www.moodlenews.com/2015/90-minute-step-by-step-introduction-to-moodle/

Moodle Tutorial for Beginners - YouTube

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCOVaN2BsHmTHUtE5LbIVR_w

Moodle video tutorials - MoodleDocs - Moodle.org

https://docs.moodle.org/en/Moodle video tutorials

Moodle for Dummies

https://www.tedu.edu.tr/sites/default/files/content.../ctl_2016_moodle_for_dummies.pdf

Microsoft Word (including style sheet application)

https://support.office.com/en-us/article/word-for-windows-training-7bcd85e6-2c3d-4c3c-a2a5-5ed8847eae73?wt.mc_id=otc_home&ui=en-US&rs=en-US&ad=US

Excel

https://support.office.com/en-us/article/excel-for-windows-training-9bc05390-e94c-46af-a5b3-d7c22f6990bb?wt.mc id=otc home&ui=en-US&rs=en-US&ad=US

LinkedIn

https://au.linkedin.com/

https://www.skillshare.com/classes/How-to-Build-Your-LinkedIn-Profile-for-Business-Entrepreneurship-Business-Startups-Freelancers/1221408357?via=search-autocomplete



Social Media Marketing

Hootsuite - Social Media Advertising 101: How to Get the Most Out of Your Ad Budget https://blog.hootsuite.com/social-media-advertising/

Website Design

WordPress: How to 'Build a site. Sell your stuff. Start a blog. And so Much More.' https://wordpress.com/

3. Learning Skills

E-portfolio. It is strongly recommend students create an ePortfolio as part of their skill enhancement and career readiness.

Links include:

https://sites.google.com/site/eportfolioapps/overview

https://learnonline.canberra.edu.au/portfolio/view/view.php?id=2791

http://www.portfoliogen.com/pricing.cfm

https://billymeinke.wordpress.com/2012/01/31/5-tips-for-making-your-eportfolio-get-noticed-by-employers/

Several ePortfolio software applications exist which are free to students. NAPS IT Manager will post a link to the most highly recommended sites after the trial of several versions is completed.

Some of the online tools to be reviewed are:

- pathbrite.com
- o carbonmade.com
- o dunked.com
- o www.krop.com
- o dribbble.com
- Citation Tools

Tool for Mastering APA Citation Style:

https://apastyle.apa.org/learn/quick-guide-on-references#Bibliography

Academic English Skills Resources:

edX MOOC on IELTS Academic Test Preparation

https://www.edx.org/course/ielts-academic-test-preparation



4. Resources for NAPS Teachers

Resources for Teaching Business

http://www.bschool.com/business-teachers-resource-page/

http://www.businessenglishresources.com/

https://www.ijser.org/researchpaper/Effective-Methods-of-Teaching-Business-Education.pdf

http://www.ijmbs.com/Vol4.3/spl1/krishna-kumar.pdf

forevercurious.org/business-lesson-plans/

 Moodle tutorials - Teacher Training Videos www.teachertrainingvideos.com/moodle/

eLearning

articles with the latest eLearning news and trends and information about the future of the learning industry with forecasts:

https://elearningindustry.com/subjects/elearning-articles/elearning-trends

eLearning Teaching Resources

https://elearningindustry.com/subjects/free-elearning-resources

5. Ongoing Development

Feedback on the Skills Hub content and additional suggestions are very welcome. Please send your suggestions to the NAPS IT and Website Services Manager IT@naps.edu.au.

Document Details

Approving Committee/Body	Board of Directors and Council	
Date of Initial Approval	15 February 2019	
Date of Effect	1 November 2022	
Review Schedule	Every 3 years from commencement	
Policy Owner	Board of Directors and Council	
Policy Contact	IT and Website Manager	
Delegated Actor (include if applicable)	N/A	
Related Documents	N/A	
Applicability to Higher Education	3.3 Learning Resources and Educational	
Standards Framework (Threshold	Support	
Standards) 2015 (Cth)		



Document History

Version	Author	Changes	Approval Date
1.0	Board of Directors and Council	Original Version	15 February 2019
2.0	Registrar	Delegations section added	12 May 2025